State of Hawai'i - Department of Business, Economibevelopment, and Tourism
Greenhouse Gas Emissions Reduction Task Force
Meeting Minutes
Thursday, September 3, 2009, 11 am-—1:30 pm
Room 436, No. 1 Capitol District Building (fmr. Hemmeter Bldg)
250 S. Hotel St., Honolulu, Hawaii 96813

Attendance
Task Force (TF) present:

*oONogaRrwWNE

1)

2)

3)

Laurence Lau, Co-chair

Estrella Seese and Theodore Peck, designees foddteE. Liu , Co-chair
Mark Fox

Frank Clouse

Maxine Burkett

Jeff Mikulina

Makena Coffman

Robbie Alm

Representative present from Attorney Gener@ffice: Mr. Gregg Kinkley, Deputy Attorney General

The meeting was called to order by Co-chair &ali1:10 a.m.

Minutes from the July TF meeting were approved

Presentation: “First Draft of Hawaii GreenkeuGas Emissions Work Plan” via webinar:

ICF representatives present on the webinar were Bleod, Susan Asam, and Christopher Caners; ahd Jef
Amlin, the developer of the Energy 2020 model.

ICF presented the results of the modeling for thed¢ work plans. The webinar covered a summargsfits,
project overview, reference projection, work plansl impact analysis. The PowerPoint presentatyoiCh,
referenced above, is available for download at:
http://hawaii.gov/dbedt/info/energy/greenhouse/H#6620GHG%20Task%20Force%20Work%20Plans%203

Sept2009V3.pdf

ICF noted that initiatives Hawaii has already takeéth federal legislative requirements will achiethe
mandated level of reductions by January 1, 20Rftiatives in work plan #1 further reduce GHG esniss to
about 40% below 1990 levels by 2020. Because wiank #1 policies/initiatives already reduce emissjo
ICF also modeled state carbon tax (work plan ##8)tae proposed federal cap and trade program (plark
#3), which each resulted in very small additiaealuctions in GHG emissions compared to work ptan #

Mr. Clouse expressed concern that the report di¢oasider the situation where Hawaii might implemna
carbon tax while other states enact a cap and piahe which could result in double taxation. Mfood
acknowledged that a variety of scenarios are plesdilit the report did not make any assumptiontates
implementing different policies.

Mr. Wood presented the target, scope, and key gssums of the work plan (see ICF presentationestil
Mr. Wood clarified that the REMI model provides taeonomic forecast that is used in the Energy 2020
model to calculate demand, and the supply to nie¢tdlemand results in air emissions, includingeted
GHG emissions (see slide 5). Mr. Wood presentaahamary of reference projections (see slide 6)}talTo
GHG emissions are projected to decline 0.8%/yr g&salt of energy efficiency and increased renewakk.
Policies already inherent in the reference projectiill result in total state emissions reductioifs
approximately 10% by 2020, and 15% of emissiookuded in the state’s Act 234 target by 2020.

GHG Task Force Meeting Minutes 09-03-09



Ms. Seese inquired whether residential kWh usagelisded in projection of Power Sector emissiohs.
Wood clarified that projected residential, commal;cind industrial emissions covered all emissiuots
including the use of electricity, so there was palale counting.

Mr. Wood articulated key assumptions of the modete slides 8-11). Mr. Wood noted that each poliag
modeled on a stand-alone basis, so when impleméngether the interaction could result in substiyti
more reductions for some policies than others. &b recommends policies concerning land use pignn
but these policies were not included in the modgetio no specific estimates on reductions are dlaila

Mr. Wood summarized work plan #1, which includesvda Clean Energy Initiative (HCEI) measures plus
additional recommended policies (see slide 11).

Mr. Clouse inquired whether the model comparesegrio low sulfur fuel that HECO is using or to dies
Mr. Wood clarified that in modeling the electricssgm ICF associated with each plant the fuel types.

Mr. Lau inquired which of the policies includedthre table (slide 11) are not HCEI initiatives. MYood
responded that RPS and EEPS and fuel standartegéstative requirements; the additional renewable
generation and the use of biofuels are based amigisns included in the HCEI agreement, as aseveater
cooling Plug in Hybrid Electric Vehicles and sea@vaair conditioning.

Mr. Peck noted that regarding EEPS, HCEI requif#®$ 8eduction by 2030, thus the work plan interpesa
20% reduction goal for 2020. Mr. Wood confirmed #ssessment.

Mr. Wood noted that fuel efficiency standards andding code are policies, not specifically addesss
HCEI, that ICF identified as recommended areapfaential further improvement.

Ms. Seese raised the point that ICF must providdahk force with estimates of the total costsazhepolicy.
Mr. Wood responded that cost estimates are inclim#dte economic modeling, and that all costs and
assumptions associated with the measures are dikeribed in the assumptions book or in the wtatk p
report.

Mr. Fox expressed concern that the complicatedeptasion of the report — such as having cost figgmead
out across various sections and appendices oéffatras well as in the separate Assumptions Boo&kes
the ICF’s overall plan difficult to synthesize, asuggested that the next iteration bring togetheféhe
components of the work plan in a clearer more aghesay. Mr. Wood responded that ICF appreciabexd t
concern; a lot of information that went into thedabng of course, and ICF tried to be as expliod a
transparent with that information as they could béey tried to provide all of that in the leveld#dtail that's
requested; making it all easy to find at the same ts a challenge.

Dr. Coffman inquired whether ICF had run the outjpain Energy 2020 through the REMI model. Mr. Wood
clarified that the results do not include the ecoimfeedback from the macroeconomic model in tipore
which has been run but not written up yet.

Mr. Lau, Mr. Peck, and Ms. Burkett pointed out ttfeg report should have at the outset, well-dguedo
executive summaries with conclusions, , especsatige the report will be made available to theegah
public shortly. Mr. Wood responded that ICF hadvited in section 5 of the report a description rieager
detail of the work plan policies and that the intefitheir executive summary had been to provithgh level
overview and a discussion on some of the polidiaswere described, as the policies are brougletheg. He
promised to look at the structure of the report exelcutive summary to try to make it clearer.

Mr. Wood noted that the bulk of reductions comenfrine power sector as a result of EEPS and the HCEI
agreement, complimented by improved building codese slide 12.

Mr. Wood proceeded to work plan #2, which appliesidon tax on top of work plan #1 initiatives.eS#ide
13.

GHG Task Force Meeting Minutes 09-03-09



Mr. Clouse inquired how the model applies the cartaxx across products - at the wholesale levadjlietel?
Mr. Wood clarified that it is applied at the whaés level but would show up in retail energy pric@e tax
is applied across all fossil fuels based on theaarcontent of each fuel, and thus applies to ptsdoased on
fuel use.

Mr. Clouse expressed concern that a Hawaii carwieduld distort Hawaii's economy if Hawaii impoetad
then taxes products that have already been subjecfederal cap-and-trade ‘hidden tax’. Mr. Wood
explained that the effects of the issue would shpwo some extent in the macroeconomic model, iont'td
know the extent that the model would recognizedipons such as, for example, an airline has talie to
purchase fuel from somewhere other than Hawaii.

Mr. Wood explained that the model assumes the catidoowill start at $10/ton in 2010 and increase to
$40/ton in 2020 (see slide 13 for details). Mr.&moted that the report does not model other $evkl
carbon taxes because the target emissions redustasumed to be met in the reference projectida.
explained that a carbon tax essentially furnisleetamty but it doesn’t provide compliance certpist there
is not assurance of a certain level of reductiosedaon applying the carbon tax. ICF selectedetel to
comparable to the anticipated cost of permits adadt test a level to determine what level of cerlax
would be required to achieve the target in large Ipacause the target is being met in the referpngjection.

Mr. Fox expressed concern that the report doesaradider the situation where the goals and timefiriee
HCEI agreement are not achieved, and that it'shtase that modeling some different level of cartax is
unnecessary if it looks like we are going to achithe 1990 levels in any case with the referenoggtion.
Mr. Wood replied that for the purpose of the wolkp ICF developed three work plans that would exhi
what the task force asked ICF to look at. He #aade are different configurations whether the icamttal US
does one program and Hawaii does another. Mangrdift variations exist, and ICF provided modelifithe
three work plans; if the task force wished ICF vebloé happy to look at all the different kinds ofigats, but
they couldn’t do it in the scope of the currentjpot.

Mr. Mikulina inquired how revenue from a carbon tan be used to fund expensive projects (sucheas th
smart grid and undersea cable) necessary to eHai#®. Mr. Wood responded that certainly the stawel of
carbon tax doesn’t really make that much of a diffiee to GHG emissions levels. ICF had recommetited
based on the level of carbon tax included in thekvpban scenario, that the majority of the fundsdterned
via the tax system to address the equitably isSome could be used to fund HCEI initiatives; hogrdCF's
recommendation is that part of the tax be usedlisidize the subset or group most impacted byatke ta
fairly common practice. Mr. Lau commented thatdkstribution of funds would be a policy call fdret TF.

Mr. Wood explained (slide 17) that under Work P3ahe total cost of purchasing permits would start
~$212 million in 2012, falling to ~$154 million @020.

Ms. Seese conveyed that she couldn’t see how aitudgrin the cost ICF indicated would still resulta
decrease in residential electric bills by 20%. Wiood replied that he could assure that it does woitkICF
understands how rates are set, and that the inmpontassage is that consumers don’t care much about
electricity rates so much as they care about hoghntioeir bill turns out. Ms. Seese pointed out thee of
the things ICF included was the need for HCEI esitfterisland cable, and asked if ICF assumed &feos
that and if that was reflected in the increasdeuatecity prices shown (22-24%)? Mr. Wood respeddhat
yes, the prices ICF used in the modeling is disedigs the work plan, appendix in terms of the agstions.

Mr. Wood summarized (slide 18): all three work @avould raise energy prices; however these incsease
would be offset by increases in energy efficiemegulting in overall savings. GHG emissions reituns do
not vary significantly under the different plarglost of the reductions are resultant of HCEI pltiso
recommended measures outlined in work plan #1; wtak #2 and in work plan #3 differ in their impsaoin
energy rates and their impact on the Hawaiian emgndVhat could be seen is that there are a lobsitpe
results concerning existing initiatives underway.

GHG Task Force Meeting Minutes 09-03-09



4)

Discussion of Work Plan, Reference Case Asalimptions Book:

Mr. Fox asked if ICF could model emission reductimm carbon sequestration if credits were incengi to
be kept within the state and not sold to entitigtsiole of the state as offsets for emissions elsesvilir.
Wood responded that ICF’'s sense was that they andchave done a rough estimate on potential. di@kt
feel that they have really good information on pla¢entially different price levels and maybe tisat i
something Mr. Fox could provide further information. ICF looked at it in the context of cap aratle, in
the sense that the permits are sold as offsetshehttey’re sold to regulated entities within Hledsewhere-
and that it would be an economic benefit to theestdCF hadn’t looked at it in the sense of thaest
essentially buying and retiring those reductionpayg for aforestation in order to achieve thoseicédns, but
that he thought ICF could do an estimate of that.\Wood said they would need information on how muc
potential exists at different levels of cost anevhirouch was it expected the state would wish to ang, how
much would it contribute to finance reductions;hwtihat ICF can make an estimate that for a giveel lef
expenditure, how much could be achieved. He pdiaté that it is a policy question on how much s$tete
would choose to purchase.

Prof. Burkett commented that to her, work plan #&wstill in a grey area, and that for the carbanttsat the
report’s discussion fell flat, not making clear whize benefit or the recommendation, or even timelesion

was. She believed it would be really helpful iH€ould expound more on what that approach woudd lo

like.

Dr Coffman inquired on ICF's assumptions on funditogwhich Mr. Wood replied that undersea cable is
funded within the electric sector; probably theuasgtion used was the rate payers but he would ttave
check.

Prof. Burkett commented that the assumptions odifighneeded to be made explicit, so as to idetthigy
maximum possible cost-effective reductions, ancdgkat to be laid out for each of the plans. Ghwinued
that all or at least some are concerned aboutdteHCEI was going to be successfully achieved; wies
key in the carbon tax discussion was that there lmeasome funding in combination with getting to GidG
1990 goal.

Concern was expressed by task force members thatplort did not adequately address the most tealwi
feasible and economically efficient way to implermneach plan. Dr. Coffman expressed that the uaiceyt
surrounding funding of HCEI initiatives made it ionpant for the model to compare the various wodaopl
such that the carbon tax, and cap and trade systera,modeled as the underlying drivers, rathem tha
HCEI initiatives.

Mr. Peck asked that all go back and recall thaothjective of the task force was to advise theslagire as to
what policy features need to be put in place ireptd achieve Act 234 objectives. Co-chair Ladetithat
the task force had a lot of discussion in prior timgrs on what exactly the work plan models would e
recalled that a pure carbon tax analysis was raieddejected.

The task force expressed concern that they haveeneived the macroeconomic analysis of the waakgl
and that ICF is behind on the work order it wasegiv

Ms Seese queried Mr. Wood on this, referring torttwest recent conference call discussion that DBBBA
had with ICF. Mr. Wood responded that it had irdlesken ICF longer to complete the macroeconomic
analysis; they needed to make changes in the REdehwhich we didn’t anticipate, and this caused it
take longer to map between the two models; alsea$ due in part to the complexity of modeling wvittke cap
and trade system. However, ICF did have the maora@mic modeling completed; they hadn't finished
reviewing and crunching the numbers to put theltesdi that into the report, but were working ascly as
they could to get that to the task force. ICF ustd®d the TF's timeline and was working to getrisults to
you on time.

GHG Task Force Meeting Minutes 09-03-09



5)

6)

7

Discussion on planning Public Workshopshim tounties:

Mr. Lau noted that the TF needs to organize puktickshops. Mr. Barry Ching of DOH estimated thed t
costs will amount to $1,000 per person for all gwerkshops. Ms. Seese announced that the DBEBT an
DOH identified 4 weeks in the October and Noventbeeframe to hold at least one workshop per county.
At each workshop, TF members would present the \wtak. Mr. Peck noted that having consultantsgmes
at public workshops had not worked well in the paisice the work plan being presented is the THSs.
Steele noted that the TF must be comfortable waighwtork plan delivered by ICF.

Concerning the deadline for submission of the TEwmans, and how to incorporate any changes Heat t
TF wanted to possibly make based upon input fraerptliblic meetings, Mr. Peck clarified that the Téwd
submit it in time, but that the TF could still clemoto amend the report after that. He also conmedethiat

Ms. Seese noted that the final report and worksplaill be posted on the website prior to the wodgshto
receive public comments.

Co-chair Lau reiterated that in accord with Mr. Kligy's advice regarding sunshine law requiremdntsas
important for TF members to notify in advance tle@mmitment to attend which public workshops. Mr.
Kinkley outlined advance knowledge of attendangeeidinent in that an investigative committee isrfed
for a public workshop with 3-5 TF members attendingd a full TF meeting (6 or more TF members
attending) is announced in advance per sunshine.

Presentation: “Landowner Perspective on Ndforest Reforestation for Carbon Sequestratiorotmet
Public Benefits.”:

Mr. Fox introduced Mr. James Greenwell, who preseéihe perspective of large private landownersen t
possibility of carbon sequestration and forestordion. Mr. Greenwell presented two goals of éapgivate
landowners: conservation and monetary. He ackrayele that landowners need to be in the business of
conservation, but that business needs to be potdita

Brandi Beaudet representing Parker Ranch notechtsabeen given positive incentives to pursue carbo
sequestration as an alternative source of fundifayker Ranch has looked into the internationaketabut
would prefer the credits to stay within the Staltr.. Beaudet encouraged the TF to continue to gucsubon
sequestration plans.

Alan Gottlieb representing Ponoholo Ranch notetlfihaduction goal is to make a profit and that msey
grazed grassland with trees and native forest slaeris the most efficient means of making a profit

Mr. Mikulina asked if different cattle managemeagimes have been analyzed for GHG emissions, tohwhi
Mr. Greenwell responded he did not have that arslys

Public Comment segment:

In response to a query from Prof. Burkett on madpéidditional scenarios, Mr. Peck suggested tleaTth
could ask ICF for quotes for additional analysig, to avoid interfere with existing timeline corahts. Mr.
Lau noted that such analysis in addition to the W2k order would have to be a follow-on projectieth
would require exploring further funding which would necessary.

8) TF discussion on future agenda items and h@egeng matters:

9)

The TF will be meeting next on October 8, 2009.

Meeting adjourned at 1:41 p.m.

GHG Task Force Meeting Minutes 09-03-09



